

PlanetTogether Training

Introduction

Welcome to PlanetTogether Training for Schedulers! The purpose of the training is familiarize you the user with the features and functionalities that are crucial to everyday use of PlanetTogether. Most users are completely unacquainted with the software so at this level this manual will also cover base functionality that may or may not be used in future phases.

As a Master Scheduler, this manual will contain the bulk of the functionality that exists within PlanetTogether, touching basically all points that will overlap with other functional areas, such as purchasing, planning, and management levels.

The training will be centered on introducing concepts that are integral to PlanetTogether, how those concepts are structured in the software and finally around a process for daily use of PlanetTogether.

Table of Contents

Introduction1
Factory Model Elements
Resource Objects5
Items and Inventory Objects5
Job Objects6
Planning Cycle
Creating the Schedule
Refresh Data7
Jobs View8
Layouts and Customization8
Creating a Layout
Column Order10
Columns Displayed11
Tabs and Definitions12
Job Dialog13
Opening Jobs
Job Dialog Layout
Job Header14
Manufacturing Order Details15
Operation Header15
Making Manual Scheduling Changes16
Understanding the Gantt
Changing the Time Window
Other Zooming Options
Labels
Drag-and-Drop21
Finding Jobs21
Changing the Sequence of Orders22
Activity Grid23
Move Manager24
Inventory Plot

Split Screen	26
Specific Job	26
Compressing the Schedule	26
Updating the Schedule	27
Refreshing the Planning Data	27
Advancing the Clock	27
Capacity Plan	29
Controlling the Number of Buckets	
Inventory Plan	31
Item Types to Show	31
Data to Show	32
Time to Show	32
Click Options	32
Rescheduling Jobs	33
Editing Forecasts	33
Inventory Plot	33
What-If Scenarios	34
Experimenting with Optimization Rules	34
Rule Summary	34
Synchronous	35
Delivery Date	
Priority	36
Efficiency	
Operation Attributes	
Ranges	
Adjusting the Relative Values	40
Changing the Rules	40
To Change Optimization Rules from the Gantt	41
To Apply a Specific Rule Using the Optimize Options	41
Setup Times	41
Factors of Setup	42
Types of Setup	42

Consecutive vs Parallel Setup42
Setup Tables43
Create a New Setup Table43
Attribute Codes
Create Attribute Table44
Assign to Resource
Attributes and Ranges45
Making Scheduling Changes46
Expediting Orders and Putting Orders on Hold46
Splitting47
Impact Analysis
KPI
Undo & Redo
Running Reports
Publishing the Schedule

Factory Model Elements

PlanetTogether is a highly data-driven Advanced Planning and Scheduling (APS) system. Before we proceed with training on the software, it is important to understand what elements are being imported into PlanetTogether and are driving decision making within the software.

There are typically three categories of elements that are defined within PlanetTogether:

- 1. Resource objects
- 2. Items and Inventory objects
- 3. Job objects

Resource Objects

Resource objects pertain to the physical machines and labor resources that comprise departments that again comprise plants.

Plant: The plant generally represents a physical manufacturing location. It is comprised of one or more departments.

Departments: A department is defined as a group of resources that are grouped together, either because of their physical proximity to one another or because they have similar functions. Each department is comprised of one or more resources.

Resource: A resource is defined as a machine, tool, or laborer that performs work toward production orders. Generally it represents a single machine or tool, but can also be modeled to represent a group of resources like a labor crew. Every resource should have at least one capability.

Capability: A capability is defined as the kind of work that needs to be done. For example, a capability could be "cut" or "sand" or "heat treat".

Capability Assignments: A capability assignment is the process of tying the type of work to be done (capability) with the correct resources that can perform that kind of work.

Items and Inventory Objects

Items and inventory objects pertain to materials and products that are inventoried in warehouses. It also includes purchase orders, sales orders, transfer orders, and forecasts.

Items: This is defined as a list of all the items that are being used and tracked in PlanetTogether, regardless of whether or not they are raw materials, WIP, or finished goods.

Warehouses: Warehouses are defined as locations used to store item inventories. They can be distinct locations or multiple warehouses can be modeled as a single warehouse depending on factors like travel time and distance between each inventory location.

On-Hand Inventories: This is defined as the current stock levels of the items being stored in any given warehouse.

Sales Orders: This is defined as customer orders that create demand for items in inventory.

Purchase To Stock: These are expected receipts of items that are being purchased to stock in a specified warehouse.

Job Objects

Job objects pertain to the different levels of structure for a production order (AKA work orders, manufacturing orders etc.) It also contains routing and BOM information as well.

Jobs: A job contains the customer information and due date for the customer order. Every job is comprised of one or more manufacturing orders.

Manufacturing Orders: A manufacturing order contains what product is to be made and in what quantities.

- Example: A job may specify that a customer has ordered furniture from us and needs it by the first of the next month. The manufacturing order, however, may specify that we need to build one table and four chairs. In this case, there would be two manufacturing orders: one for the four chairs and the other for the table.

Every manufacturing order is comprised of one or more operations.

Operations: An operation is a specific step in the manufacturing process. It contains a resource requirement, a run rate, and expected quantity for that process.

- Example: Building a chair can be broken down into multiple operations. For example, cutting the wood, sanding the wood, painting, and finally assembling it; each of those steps would be modeled as a different operation.

Every operation has generally one activity, but can also be split. Each operation also has at least one resource requirement.

Activities: An activity specifies the status of an operation. It contains information for tracking the reported good quantity, the reported setup time versus expected setup time, and expected versus reported run times.

Resource Requirement: The resource requirement functions as a way to specify how many resources are required for an operation.

- Example: An operation might have multiple resource requirements. For example, an operation may specify that a saw is needed to cut the wood. However, it may also specify that a master carpenter is required because of intricacies in the design. A master carpenter in this case is another resource that has finite capacity and must be scheduled like any other resource. The operation requires availability on BOTH resources in order to run.

Each resource requirement has at least one required capability.

Required Capability: A required capability is the type of work the resource requirement must be able to fulfill. It MUST match a capability that has been assigned to a resource. If PlanetTogether cannot find a match, the operation and its manufacturing order will fail to schedule.

Materials: This is a list of all the material requirements for the operation, which warehouse to draw from (optional), and how much of that material is required for the operation. This is specified on the operation but is not **required** information.

Products: This is a list of all items being produced at the operation's completion as well as the quantity of the output and which warehouse to store it in.

Alternate Paths: Alternate paths are alternative routings on the manufacturing order.

Planning Cycle

There is a general cycle that users of Planettogether will go through, though there may be slight deviations from the cycle from user to user. The planning cycle steps are broken into three steps:

- 1. Creating the schedule
- 2. Updating the schedule
- 3. Publishing the schedule

Within each step are a number of sub-steps that a user must perform, which the following sections will cover.

Creating the Schedule

This section will cover how to create your first schedule using PlanetTogether functionality. The manual will walk a user through the process step by step, covering the necessary functions and tools that are available in the software to accomplish each step.

Refresh Data

Once the user has opened up the Production Scheduling workspace, an option to Refresh the Planning Data will appear in the toolbar towards the top of the screen.



As you already know, most data used for PlanetTogether resides in your ERP system and needs to be imported into PlanetTogether. This is the purpose of the Refresh function; it will import updated work order information such as job progress and new work orders that need to be added to the schedule as well as items and inventory updates such as on-hand counts, new sales orders, and new purchase orders.

Triggering the Refresh will cause PlanetTogether to import information for all Factory Modeling Elements that were selected for import. The Refresh function notifies the user both when the function has started and also when it's been completed at the bottom left corner of the screen.

Home	Gantt	Jobs	Activities	Capac	ity Plan	In	ventory Plan	KPI	Impact	My Sugges
Wednesday, January 14, 2015 7:11 AM Scenario					o 1	Live Scena	ario	0/1 (0%	6) Jobs Late	
Refresh Started at 1/22/2015 4:43 PM by adr				admin		1 Master Sci	hedule	er logged i	n import-(

Once the Refresh has been completed, the Jobs View will provide us with a way to view the new information that has come in since the refresh.

Jobs View

The Jobs View groups work orders into categories designated on each tab (All, Scheduled, Unscheduled, Overdue, Late, etc.), allowing the user to manage work orders and proactively respond to potential problems. Immediately, the user will note that there are numerous columns, all with information that is either imported or calculated by PlanetTogether. The first thing to be done is to customize the layout of the Jobs View to show only the information that the user wants to see.

Layouts and Customization

Just as the roles of a planner and scheduler will differ from each other, so does the information that each role requires. Customizing the views and Layouts to display only the information that is relevant to your role cuts through the noise to give you the right data quickly and easily.

PlanetTogether allows for the creation of any number of Layouts and Alerts, allowing agile reaction to different situations that require your attention. Just as the type of information you require at a given moment might differ, different layouts can be used to quickly access the right data for the right situation.

For example, one layout might show all the orders that are currently on the schedule and are assigned to a resource. For this tab, having the work order name, due date, and expected finish date would be of utmost importance. On a different layout, however, the information that's more pertinent might be the number of late work orders and the average lateness of those work order and.

Creating a Layout

Creating a layout is a simple process that is available in any part of the software that is formatted as a grid.

1. Click 'New' in the layouts toolbar

Π	De	efault 👻 🔛 New	Delete Currer	nt
	Jo	bName ΣΥ▼	MoName ΣΥ.	OpName ΣΥ
1	►	MRP -214747716	TRawMaterialMS	TRawMaterialMS
2		MRP -214747657	TRawMaterialMS	TRawMaterialMS

2. Customize the column names by right-clicking on column name and selecting Customize

Jo	bName ΣΥ•	MoN		5 Y 🗸	Produc
1	MRP -214747716	TRaw 9	Hide Column	IMS	Ready
2	MRP -214747657	TRaw ×	Clear Filters	IMS	Ready
3	MRP -214747946	TInter T	Custom Filter	∍MS	Ready
4	MRP -214747656	TRaw	Move to Front	IMS	Ready
5	MRP -214747945	TInter 🤿	Move to Rear	∍MS	Ready
6	MRP -214747887	TInter	Settings	em5	Ready
7	MRP -214747714	TRawMater	alMS I RawMater	aIMS	Ready
			,		

- 3. Select what Columns you'd like displayed
- 4. Click 'Save'

Û	Column Layout – 🗖	×
You can move colun double-clicking them	nns by dragging with the right mouse button or 1.	
Hidden Columns	Show these columns in this order:	
BlockId DepartmentId JobId MoId OpId PlantId ResourceId	Job Name Mo Name Op Name Production Status Priority Job Need Date Job Hold Date Slack Days Scheduled Start Scheduled End Customer Qty Product Product Description SetupColor Plant Department Resource Material Availability	< >
Show All ->	> <- Hide All	
Apply	Save and Close Cancel	

Column Order

There are two ways that the order of the columns can be rearranged: drag-and-drop and column switching.

Columns can be rearranged by simply dragging and dropping the columns in the desired order. An arrow will appear to alert the user where the new column will reside.

- 1. Select the column
- 2. Left-click and hold the column
- 3. Drag to the right or left
- 4. Release the left-click to drop the column in the desired location

See the image below:

				+
-	Qty Σ ∀ •	SlackDays Σ 🛛 🕶	Product Σ ∀ -	ProductDescription Σ ∀ ▼ SetupCode Σ ∀ ▼ 3
	60.00	4.69	Display Box	SlackDays Σ 🕈 -
	600.00	4.58		
	600.00	4.58		
_	000.00	4.50		

Drag-and-drop can be very useful when the columns being rearranged are in close proximity to the front of the order of columns. There are cases, however, when a desired column is at the far end of the scroll bar. In situations like this, drag-and-dropping is not an efficient way of rearranging the order of columns.

On every column are a number of buttons that allow additional customizations such as filtering and summation. The third button from the left is a small, downward-facing triangle. See image below:

ProductionStatus 2 7	7 ▼ Priority Σ Υ ▼ JobNeedDate Σ	V - Job
Waiting	5 JobName	-
Ready	MoName OpName	
Ready	5 ProductionStatus	
Ready	JobHoldDate	
Ready	5 SlackDays	
Ready	5 ScheduledStart	Ť

When pressed, a dropdown with a list of every column in the current tab is displayed. Selecting a column from this list instantly swaps the column with the one selected. This is particularly useful when a less pertinent column is closer to the front of the column order and can be safely swapped with something at the very end like a user-defined field (UDF).

- 1. Select the Column
- 2. Click the swapping button on the column header
- 3. Left-Click the desired column to swap positions with.

Columns Displayed

Not only can columns be rearranged, but they can be hidden altogether. When a user knows that a specific column won't ever be needed, at least in the near future, he or she can choose to hide the column altogether. While the preconfigured layouts will hide many of the columns by default, a user might want to hide additional columns.

1. Locate the toolbar towards the bottom of the screen

2. Left-Click the Customize Column Layout button

Default 👻 🎹 New 🎹 Delete Current								
Jo	bName ΣΥ ▼	MoName Σ ∀ •	OpName Σ ∀ ▼	ProductionStatus Σ				
1	MRP -214747716	TRawMaterialMS	TRawMaterialMS	Ready				
2	MRP -214747657	TRawMaterialMS	TRawMaterialMS	Ready				
3	MRP -214747946	TIntermediateMS	TIntermediateMS	Ready				
4	MRP -214747656	TRawMaterialMS	TRawMaterialMS	Ready				
5	MRP -214747945	TIntermediateMS	TIntermediateMS	Ready				
6	MRP -214747887	TIntermediateMS	TIntermediateMS	Ready				
7	MRP -214747714	TRawMaterialMS	TRawMaterialMS	Ready				
	~ = □ Ⅲ	I 🗱 🔍 🖶 🖁	🛓 📾 Excel 📾	PDF 📠 XML XPS				

- 3. Double left-click any field in the right-hand column (Show these Columns in this Order:) to hide the column
- 4. Repeat for all the columns that need to be hidden
- 5. Left-Click 'Save and Close'

Now that we know how to rearrange and customize the column order and layout, how do decide which columns to hide? The answer lies in understanding the differences between the tabs and the information that they are meant to convey.

Tabs and Definitions

Each of the different tabs in the Jobs View is dynamic created, meaning that the tabs do not appear when there are no work orders that fit into the given categorization. For example, if there are no work orders set to finish Late, the Late tab would not appear. This is intended to reduce the amount of clutter on the screen and allow users to focus specifically on the relevant tabs.

The possible tabs are listed and defined below:

All: Lists all the work orders in PlanetTogether regardless of categorization.

New: Lists all the work orders that are brand new and have not yet been added to the schedule.

Scheduled: Lists all orders that have successfully been added to the schedule.

Excluded: Lists all orders that have been excluded from the schedule for one reason or another.

Templates: Lists all orders that have been marked as templates. A template is a ready-made routing for a specific SKU often used in Express MRP.

Unscheduled: Lists all orders that have been unscheduled either automatically upon Refresh or manually by the user. An order would be unscheduled upon Refresh if the routing changed on the refresh.

Failed to Schedule: Lists all orders that could not be scheduled for various reasons. Some reasons would include a work order that specify a required capability that has not been assigned to any resources, or a work order with constraint requirements that cannot be met by any of the resources.

Finished: Lists all orders that have been marked as completed.

Cancelled: Lists all orders that have been marked as cancelled.

Overdue: Lists all orders that have due dates that are in the past from the current day.

Late: Lists all orders that have due dates that are later than their need date. Late orders and overdue orders often overlap.

Started: Lists all orders that have some good quantity reported to the order.

Slow Performance: Lists all orders that are running slower than expected.

On-Hold: Lists all orders that have been put on hold.

Entered Today: Lists all orders that have been brought into PlanetTogether in the current day.

Past Planning Horizon: Lists all orders that are currently past the planning horizon. An order past the planning horizon is generally indicative of a material constraint that cannot be satisfied.

Job Dialog

Once the tabs are understood and the columns have been arranged per the user's needs, the next step would be to look into the work orders themselves. Although the information has been imported and resembles exactly the data in the source ERP, occasionally it is helpful to look into the order for routing or BOM information as it exists in PlanetTogether.

Opening Jobs

Each job dialog can be opened by highlighting the work order and clicking "Open", shown below:

Jobs					
8	New Open	📄 CTP 🍓 🛛 Opera	ation Graph Repor	ts 🔻 Job Gant	t - Find Browse Watch
Layo	uts Default		New Layout De	elete Current Layo	out
Sear	ch		 Only search in ad 	ctive column	Showing 40 of 40 rows
	Name ∑ ∀ - ⇔	ExternalId Σ ∀ - +	AgentAlert Σ ∀ ◄ ⇔	AlmostLate 2 3	7 ▼ ⇔ Bottlenecks Σ ∀ ▼ ⇔
1	JS 00002	PT00002	Never		
2	JS00006	PT00006	Never	 Image: A start of the start of	
3	JS00007	PT00007	Never	1	

Another way is to double click on the small black triangle on the row shown below:

1		JS 00002	PT00002	Never		
2	Þ	JS00006	PT00006	Never	 Image: A start of the start of	
3		JS00007	PT00007	Never	~	

Job Dialog Layout

The now open job dialog will be divided into two sections. The topmost pertains to either the job or operation header depending on which is selected on the left hand side of the dialog.

			Job JS00006 for ST	ОСК	-	□ ×
	New Job 🗋 Copy	y Job Show Job Header	🖲 Operation Graph 📓	Reports - New Manufac	turing Order	÷
	Job Header					ų χ
8	Job Name	External Id	ld	Scheduling Financials	Performance Entry	Priority 4
Head	JS00006	PT00006	-2147483341			Ŷ.
de l	Need by		Order Number	Latest Constraint	2 · Constrain	nt 2 · ▼ INE
	1/2/2009	▼ 11:30 AM	• •			
	Description				A	F
.u				Start Date Thursday	y, January 1, 2009 6:00	End Date:
perat	Customer	Destination	Color Code	Anchored	Locked	
0			255			
	Do Not Schedule		Hold Until:	1/1/1800	AM 🕂 🗌	T
Gar	ntt View (as last saved)	Grid View Original Demand F	egged Demand Connected	Jobs Gantt		
	Refresh Expand	d 📮				
H	< ► H 1/2000			11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	20 21 22 23 24 25 26	H 4 F H
	1/2005		Thu 01			Fri
Op	Op Desc	06 JS000 , 150.0	09 12 15 006, STOCK, Component 2, 00	18 21 00	03 06 NeedDate	09 1 : Fri 02 Jan
Op	010			0p010 CNC 1		
<		>				
				Sa	we and Close	Cancel

Job Header

The job header displays information about the job as a whole, such as the customer name and need date of the order. On the upper right-hand corner, there are a number of other fields that maybe populated by the refresh, such as priority or financial fields.

	Job Header													х
	Job Name			External Id	ld	Scheduling	Financials	Performance	Entry Price	rity Notes	User Fields	History	Analys 4	Þ
	1000000					OVERDUE!								
ade	JS00006			P100006	-214/483341	This Job shou	ld have been	finished 6.06 ye	ars ago.					
He	Need by		Order Number						and a start					
P	1/2/2009	11:30 AM]			Late	st Constraint	21.0	onstraint 2	• Need	Date 2 1 •	Days La	ite 2 i •	τ
	Description													
	Customer	Destination	Color Code											
5	STOCK		255, 255, 2	255	•	1								-
peratic	Commitment	Finished	Reviewed	Cancelled	Set Game Values	Start Date	Thursda	y, January 1, 20	09 6:00 En	d Date:	Thursday, Jar	wary 1, 20	09 4:00 PN	Ĺ
0	Fim	✓ 0 %	Printed	Invoiced		Ancho	red	Lod	ced		Past Plann	ing		
	Do Not Schedule	Do Not Delete	Hold Until: 1	/1/1800 🐺 12:1	00 AM 🕂									-

Manufacturing Order Details

The bottom half of the Job dialog shows firstly the list of manufacturing orders, which includes the required quantity for the manufacturing order as well as the product to be produced.

Underneath the list of manufacturing orders is the Manufacturing Order Details which contains a list of all the operations for that manufacturing order.

Gantt View (as last save	d) Grid View	Original Demand	Pegged Demand	Connected Jobs Gantt										
Manufacturing Order	Operations	Alternate Paths	Successor M.O.s											
	Manufacturing Orders													
ExternalId Σ ∀ + I	Name Σ マ -	ProductName E P	 ProductDescrip 	tion $\Sigma \ \forall \bullet$ ProductColor Σ	$\forall \bullet RequiredQty \Sigma \forall$	 IsReleased Σ Υ . 	ReleaseDateTime Σ ∀ •	NeedDate ∑ ∀ -	MoNeedDate ∑ ∀ •	_DBRReleaseDate ∑ ♡				
► MO010	MO010	Component 2					12/14/2008 3:20 PM	1/2/2009 11:30		1/1/2009 6:30 PM				
MOUTU Component 2 10:00 12/14/2008 3/20 FM 12/14/2008 3/20 FM 11/2009 6/30 FM Add New Manufacturing Order														

The Operations tab lists all operations, as well as their scheduled status, required finish quantities, and their scheduled start and end dates. It should be noted that all operations across all alternate paths (alternate routings) are listed in the operations list.

Manufacturin	ng Orders O	perations	Alternate Paths	Successor M.O.s							
ExternalId	Σ 🛛 🕶 Name	eΣマ・D	escription $\Sigma = \bullet$	_PercentFinished $\Sigma \forall \bullet$	_Finished Σ ∀ •	_Scheduled $\Sigma \ \forall$	RequiredFinishQty Σ ∀ ▼	_RemainingFinishQty ∑ ♥ ▼	_ScheduledStart Σ ∀ •	_ScheduledEnd ∑ ∀ •	_ResourcesUsed
▶ Op010	Op0	10		0		 Image: A start of the start of	150.00	150.00	1/1/2009 6:00 AM	1/1/2009 4:00 PM	CNC 1
1											<u>۲</u>
Add N	lew Operation	n									

The Alternate Paths tab displays how the operations precede and succeed each other. The Alternate Paths tab also contains information how the different operations can overlap one another.

	Externalld	Σ Υ •	Name	Σ Ψ -	Preference	Σ 🛛 🗕	AutoBuildLinearPath	ΣΫ▼	AutoUse	$\Sigma \nabla$	AutoUseReleaseOffsetDays Σ	∀ •		
⊡- ▶	Path010		Path010		1				IfCurrent	-	0.00			
	PredecessorOperationExt	ternalld ΣΥ-	_OperationNan	neΣ∀+	_OperationDescrip	tion Σ マ -	SuccessorOperationExterna	alld Σ \forall +	_SuccessorNa	neΣ∀•	SuccessorDescription D	∀ • Usage	eQtyPerCycle Σ ▼ ·	- Max
	Op010	•	Op010					-				1.00		256
4														Þ
Add .	New Alternate Path	Link Operatio	n or Successo	or										

Operation Header

The operation header contains the information for a single operation in the routing. It is tied directly to the operation selected under the Manufacturing Order Details' Operations tab.

	Operation: Op010											4 ×
_	General Status	Sc <u>h</u> edulin	ng <u>B</u> atching/Setups	Advanced	<u>R</u> esources	<u>N</u> otes	Buy-Direct Materials	Stock Materials	Products	Subassemblies	Attributes	
eade	Name		Exte	emal Id		Time	Standards					
do H	Op010		0	p010		Cal		0 hours				
7	Description			Unit of M	easure	Jei	up	UTIOUIS		Manual update	e only	
				units		Cyr	de	4 minutes	-	Manual update	e only	
	Required Qty	_	Qty Per Cycle			Po	st-Processing	0 hours	-	Manual update	e only	
010	150.0	00	1.00	Manual up	date only	Ta	k Post-Processing	0 hours	-	Manual update	only	
0	Start Qty	-	Planned Scrap %			Ma	terial	Ohouro		Manual undate	only	
erati,	1:	50	0.00	Manual up	date only	Po	st-Processing	0 Hours			,	
ð												

It is separated into the following tabs:

- General – contains run rate and setup time information

- Status shows the internal activity and scheduling status and reported good quantities and run rates.
- **Scheduling** shows scheduling information such as scheduled start and end dates, latest constraint, and number of work hours.
- **Batching/Setups** contains information regarding batch codes and setup identifiers which will be covered in the next section.
- Advanced contains advanced settings for overlap functionality, successor processing and how the operation deals with scrap, and resizing quantities.
- **Resources** this contains the resource requirement and required capabilities information.
- Notes this tab allows the user to import or create any notes that he or she would like regarding the operation. For example, it may note a material substitution or special instructions for the operation.
- **Buy-Direct Materials** This tab is for items that are being purchased specifically for this operation. These purchases are not reflected in the Inventory Objects' Purchase Orders.
- Stock Materials contains a list of the required materials and quantities for the completion of the order. Typically this is the BOM, which is compiled on the first operation. However, if the BOM is split among several operations with WIP or other state changes, the BOM may appear at different levels on different operations.
- **Products** contains a list of products, byproducts and output quantities for the operation.
- **Subassemblies** contains a list of subassemblies used in the operation.
- **Attributes** contains a list of attribute numbers and codes most often used to determine setup times.

Making Manual Scheduling Changes

At this point, information has been imported into PlanetTogether, the Jobs View has been customized, and we've taken a closer look at things like the job dialog and setup times. The time has come to be able to move the newly imported jobs onto the schedule and manually sequence them to create the schedule.

This section will focus primarily on the different methods of manually making schedule changes. As most manual changes occur on the Gantt, the Gantt is where the section will begin.

Understanding the Gantt

The Gantt view displays a list of all plants, departments and resources, shown below:

Gar	ntt								▼□ ‡ ×
Re	source Gantt	🝷 🧕 Re	ports 🔻 🚍 La	bels 🗿 Simp	olify Gantt			✓ Find Job	Open Job
1	🔍 🕶 In 2.7	Cut	64.0 📮	Zoom Gantt 🝷	Variable Zoor	m 10 🚔 🚽			
9	Job Shop Ma	chining Pa	inting Subco	ntract Test and	d Ship	La constante de			-
5	HAFH								H 4 F H
20	1/ 1/2009		Thursday,	January 1, 2009	B:17 AM Hr 3				۲
Ę	Resources	Ima M [) 16 12	1	00 06	Fri 02 12	1.8 0.0	06 12	1,8
heeri	Jig 2	^							
Ingir	Jig 1		JS 0000 JS0	0007 Custom					
_	Operator 2	10							
lant	Operator 1	10	JS 0000 JS0	0007 Custom					
cal F	Mary				e				
Jemi	Frank			JS 00002 C		JS0000	07 Custom		
Ó	Paint Booth		PT00 PT0001	C PT000 PT000	12	JS 0000			
	Coat (Sub)					15.000	02 Custom Widget		
_	Heat Treat								
	CNC 2	🔶 🗸	JS 00002 (Cust					
-	< .	>	JS00006Com	perstered by Each of Cu	stom Widget				
Car Ho	me Gantt Jobs	Activities	Capacity Plan	Inventory Plan	KPI Impact I	My Suggestions	My Views Proce	ess Flow	

Additionally, to the right of the resources is the timeline that can be changed to suit what amount of time the user needs to be able to see at a glance.

Changing the Time Window

To resize the time window:

- 1. Left-click and hold on the timeline
- 2. Drag in either direction
 - a. Drag to the right to zoom out and see more time at a glance.
 - b. Drag to the left in order to zoom in and see less time at a glance.
- 3. Release the left-click.

To keep the **amount** of time static and change what days you're looking at:

1. Left-click and hold on blank space on the Gantt

9	Job Shop	Machining	Painting	Subcontract	Test and Ship	
Š	нчьн					Н 4 Р И
qc	1/ 1/2009		-	Jan. 1-3, 2009		Saturday, January 3, 2009 4:11 AM Hr 47 🕨
ing	Resources	Ima	M D Q	Thu 01 6 09 12	15 18 2	Fri 02 Sat 03
leer	Jig 2					
Engir	Jig 1	, V		JS 00002 JS00	007 Custom Wid	
-	Operator 2	10				
lan	Operator 1	10		JS 00002 JS00	007 Custom Wid	
cal P	Mary	0				
iemi	Frank	6			JS 00002 (JS00007 Custom Wid
Ó	Paint Booth			PT000 PT00010	PT0001 PT00	012 JS 00002
'n	Coat (Sub)	6				US 00002 Custom Widost
ocess	Heat Treat					
d Pr	CNC 2	R		JS 00002 Cu	stom	
Foo	CNC 1	30		JS00006Compo	rent JS00007 C	ustom Widget
	Mill 2	<u>.</u>		JS 00002 JS00	007 Custom Wid	
-	Mill 1	4		PT00001 Com	Stable End Erozen End	
-	<		> Past			

- 2. Drag in either direction
 - a. Drag to the right to see past days and weeks
 - b. Drag to the left to see future days and weeks.

Hint: A good way to remember which way to drag would be to imagine flipping pages in a book. Turning the page to the left advances you through the book, turning pages to the right regresses you through the book.

Other Zooming Options

Notice the second line of options below the orange line. These options allow you to further refine the sizing and time span that displays on the screen.

The green icon on the left will adjust the Gantt to fit the screen. This is particularly useful if you are using a large monitor. You can zoom in or out.

Gant	t						
Reso	ource Gant	tt	- 🧕	Rep	orts •	=	Lab
	🔍 🕶 In	2.5	-	Out	59.1	•	Z
	2 1 0	1.0	1				2

The number of days and or hours displayed can be adjusted by selecting the drop down box, or you can display *week* (7 days) or *month* (31 days) from the beginning of the APS clock. The Now and Today options are based on the PC clock, so if the APS clock is set for Thursday Sept 24

8:00am and the current date and time is Friday Sept 25, 10:00am, selecting now will display Friday 10:00am. Selecting *"Today"* will display the beginning of the day for Friday.

Labels

Every block on the Gantt is color coded purposefully. The label option allows you to add multiple layers (segments) to the activity block. For example, you may want to look at set up process, in addition to the

timing segment. By checking **Process**, you will see two bars on the activity block, allowing you to see how schedule changes impact not only the timing of the job, but set-up, run, and post-processing times as well. The colors are not customizable; you can modify the label content (below).

Timing Definitions:

- White: An operation that is too early; it starts too far ahead of its JIT start date.
- Yellow: An operation that is still on time, but is coming closer and closer to its JIT start date.
 These are operations that are typically more affected when unplanned scheduling changes occur.
- Green: An operation that is comfortably on time.
- Orange: An operation that is late, but is late because of a preceding operation being late.
- Red: An operation that is a capacity bottleneck, signifying that the operation is not starting early enough to complete on time and as a result, is causing all downstream operations to run late.

You can customize the content that appears on the activity blocks and tooltips when you mouse over the activity.

Activity Display Optio

1. Select the label option for the entire block (at the top) and scroll through the data fields.

		Label Formatting	Flags	Actuals	duled Operations
		ustom tooltips	<u>Create ci</u>		Tooltip Text
) Inc	Labels to use in the Gantt The single Block Label	Label			Block
	olor Meanings	Ca		nt Type	Show Segme
Almont Late	Tes Esta	Label			Timin

2. Drag the fields that you want to display to the right-hand side.



- 3. Use your mouse to position the fields where you want them.
- 4. You can type content and then add the variable field information.
- 5. Apply, save, and close.

Drag-and-Drop

Drag-and-Drop is the simplest, most intuitive way to change the sequence of orders on a given resource.

- 1. Click on the Jobs View
- 2. Highlight the row pertaining to all work orders that need to be scheduled
- 3. Left-click and hold once the necessary rows have been highlighted 4. Drag over the Gantt View

Jobs			▼□ ₽ ×	Gantt 🗨 🗖 🕻	1 X
8 🗋	New Open 👔	📄 СТР 🍓	-	Resource Gantt 🔻 🙍 Reports 🛪 🚍 Labels 🍟 🔹 Find Job Open Jol	o ';
Layout	s Default			🐲 🍕 🕶 In 2.5 🐳 Out 59.1 🖨 Zoom Gantt 🕶 Variable Zoom 10 🐳 🚽	
Search	0				-
N	ame Σ∀•⇔	ExternalId Σ ∀ • ⇔	AgentAle		H
1	JS 00002	PT00002	Never	Image:	►
2	JS00006	PT00006	Never	PResources Ima M D 06 12 18 00 06 12 18 00 06	at 03
3	JS00007	PT00007	Never	jig 2 ^	77
4	PT00001	PT00001	Never	툴 Jig 1 U JS 0 JS(0007 C	
5	PT00009	PT00009	Never	Operator 2	
6	PT00010	PT00010	Never	통 Operator 1 / JS 0 JS(0007 C	
7	PT00011	PT00011	Never	Mary	
8	PT00012	PT00012	Never	Frank JS00007 C	
9	ENG 001	PT00013	Never	5 Paint Booth PT PT00 PT0 PT00012 JS 0	
10	ENG 002	PT00014	Never	US 00002 Custom Widget	_
11	ENG 002 Copy. I	118	Never		
12	ENG 002 Copy. I	119	Never	CNC 2 35 00002	
13	ENG 002 Copy. I	120	Never	CNC 1 3500006 C JS00007 Custom Widg	
14	ENG 002 Conv 1	121	Never		
4			•	Capacity Tools	_
	🗄 🛛 🔑 🛥	📠 🖿 二 🔡 🖉	👌 🔁	Home Gantt Activities Capacity Plan Inventory Plan KPI Impact My Suggestions My View	••

5. Release the left-click in the blank space next to the resource list.

This will schedule the highlighted orders onto the Gantt. Checking the Jobs View again will show that the selected jobs should now have legitimate scheduled start and end days.

Finding Jobs

Once work orders have been scheduled, it can be difficult to locate them at a glance. Fortunately, there is an easy way to look up work orders that are scheduled.

Ga	ntt							_			:
Re	source Gantt	- 🧟	Reports 🝷	E Labels	😼 Simplify Ga	ntt			▼ Find Job	Open Job	+
1	🔍 🔻 In 2.5	5	Out 59.1	Zoom	Gantt 🕶 🔰 Vari	able Zoom	10 🚔	Ŧ			
8	Job Shop M	1achining	Painting	Subcontract	Test and Ship						
Š	нчьн									H I F H	1

- 1. Type the name of the work order in the field
- 2. Left-click "Find" OR
- 3. Press Enter

The Gantt will automatically move to put the order in question at the very top left-hand corner and will flash yellow to alert the user which activity it is.

Changing the Sequence of Orders

The initial drag-and-drop of orders onto the Gantt will most likely not create a valid schedule. The scheduler will now need to change the sequence of orders or move orders onto different resources.

- 1. Left-click the activity that you'd like to move.
- 2. Note that a green triangle will appear next to certain resources. This marks the resources as eligible to perform the work needed on the activity.



- 3. Left-Click the activity and hold.
- 4. Drag it to the position and resource where you'd like to run the activity.
- 5. Release the left-click.

There may be times where the activity moved does not go exactly to the place specified. This is purposeful and controlled by a setting on the Gantt view.

ann			
esource Gantt	🔹 🙍 Reports	🕶 🚍 Labels 🐲 Simplify Gantt 🛛 Highlight 🛛 Job	👻 Gantt Options 👻 🐺 🔻 Find Job Open Job
🔒 🔍 - In 2.3	🗘 Out 56.3	Zoom Gantt 🕶 Variable Zoom 10 🚔 🚽	Anchor Activities in time after drag-and-drop or Expedite
Job Shop Ma	achining Painting	Subcontract Test and Ship	A Lock Activities to Resources after drag-and-drop or Expedite
нарн			🔏 Move to Exactly the place specified
1/ 1/2009		Jan. 1-3, 2009	Expedite Successors after an Activity is moved
Resources	Ima M Descrip	Thu 01 6 09 12 15 18 21 00	13 ga ga Show Tool Tips
			Show Scheduling Hints
Coat (Sub)			Show Highlighting
-			🔆 Clear existing Highlighting, Fading, and Hidden blocks
			Show Activity Links
Heat Treat	2		Clear Activity Links
			Show Campaigns
CNCO	<u>0</u>		

Move Exactly to the Place Specified: Turning this feature on will force every activity moved to settle exactly where the block is dropped, regardless if there is already another activity scheduled at that time. The resulting schedule will place the dropped activity where the cursor sits and push out any existing order to start after the moved activity.

If this not turned on, moving an activity on top of another currently scheduled activity will behave differently. If the start of the moving activity (marked as the front of the block) moves before the start of the already scheduled activity, the moving activity will be placed right in front of the scheduled activity, which will push out to start at the end of the moving activity.

Activity Grid

Another way to move work orders besides via drag-and-drop is with the Activity Grid. This displays the same information on the Gantt, but in a tabular format. This is particularly helpful when expediting a future job earlier in the schedule. Instead of dragging and dropping the work order across months, the Activity Grid will allow us to expedite the order with a few clicks of a button.

E.	esource 2 · ·	Departmen	Jo	bName ΣΥ▼	MoName Σ ∀ ▼	OpName Σ Υ ▾	ProductionStatus Σ Υ ▼	Priority Σ ∀ •	Je
27	Test Area 2	Test	1	PT00001	MO010	Op010	Ready	5	1/2
28	Tester 1	Test	2	JS00007	MO010	Milling	Ready	5	1/1
29	Tester 2	Test	3	JS00007	MO010	Milling	Ready	5	1/1
30	Tester 3	Test	4	PT00009	MO010	Op010	Ready	5	1/3
31	CNC 1	Machining	5	PT00010	MO010	Op010	Ready	5	1/4
32	CNC 2	Machining	6	PT00011	MO010	Op010	Ready	5	1/5
33	Jig 1	Machining	7	PT00012	MO010	Op010	Ready	5	1/9
34	Jig 2	Machining	8	100012	MO010	Deint	Meiting	5	1/1
35	Mill 1	Machining	0	JS00007	MOUTO	Paint	vvaiting	5	1/1
36	Mill 2	Machining	9	JS00007	MO010	Coat Sub	Waiting	5	1/1
37	Operator 1	Machining	10	JS00007	MO010	Heat Treat	Waiting	5	1/1
38	Operator 2	Machining	11	JS00007	MO010	Manual Assembl	Waiting	5	1/1
39	Paint Booth	Painting	12	ENG 001	MO010	Steel Work	Waiting	5	1/5
40	Coat (Sub)	Subcontrac	13	ENG 001	MO010	Review	Waiting	5	1/5
41	Heat Treat	Subcontract	14	ENG 001 Copy, I	MO010	Aluminum Work	Ready	2	212
42	Frank	Test and Sh	15	ENG 001 Copy L	MOOID	Steel \s/ads	Notestine .	2	2/2 *
43	Mary	Test and Sh	4			Sierer Ourse R	Viainni	-	•
	1.5		EE		# - - - -				

- 1. Left-click on the "Activities" Grid
- 2. Left-click on a Resource in the upper left-hand of the screen to display the list of activities that are scheduled to run on that resource.

Activitie	es											▼ □ ₽ ×
M	ove Activities	+ Add To M	ove Manager	-	Find In (Gantt Grid Opt	ions 🕶					
n.e	esource 2 · ·	Departmen	JobName	э	ΣΥ	MoName Σ ∀ •	OpName	Σ ∀ ▼ Prod	uctionStatus Σ	Ÿ▼ P	riority Σ ∀ ·	JobNeedDate
34	Jig 2	Machining	▶ PT00	009		MO010	Op010	Read	У	5		1/3/2009 12:00
35	Mill 1	Machining	PT00	010		MO010	Op010	Read	у	5		1/4/2009 12:00
36	Mill 2	Machining	PT00	011		MO010	Op010	Read	v	5		1/5/2009 12:00
37	Operator 1	Machining	PT00	012		MO010	Op010	Read	v	5		1/8/2009 12:00
38	Operator 2	Machining	15000	007		MO010	Paint	Waiti	na	5		1/13/2009 5:00
39	Paint Booth	Painting					· unit			-		in for 2000 0.00
40	Cost (Cob)	Cabooninao										
41	Heat Treat	Subcontrac -					1.9					
4		•				🛗 💶 🔡 🗿	🍓 🚷 P	DF XML XF	S Expand C	Collapse	Re-apply	Filters
	esource 2 · ·	Departmen	JobName	е	ΣΥΨ	MoName ΣΥ•	OpName	ΣΥ - Prod	uctionStatus 2	Y - P	riority ΣY	 JobNeedDate
• •	Pack Line 1	Packaging										
2	Pack Line 2	Packaging										
3	Packer 1	Packaging										
4	Packer 2	Packaging										
5	Packer 3	Packaging	1									
6	Packer 4	Packaging										
7	Packer 5	Packaging										
8	Tank 1	Formulation										
Î												-
	I & & I						1.4			L NL N		
									Activity Status	Notes	Operation	Activities Grid
Home	Gantt Activities	Capacity Plan	Inventory Plan	KPI	Impact	My Suggestions	My Views	Process Flow				

- 3. (Optional) Left-click on a resource in the bottom left-hand of the screen to display a list of activities scheduled to run on that resource.
- 4. Move the activity (or multiple activities) with one of the following:
 - a. Left-click and hold the work order.
 - i. Drop the order on another order to place it just before that order.
 - b. Right-click and hold the work order
 - i. Drop the order on another order to place it just after that order.

The user can move an order either onto the same resource at a different time, or drag it to the other resource displayed in Step 3.

One of the three following colors will highlight the order once the move has been attempted:

- Green: The activity moved correctly and exactly to the place desired
- Orange: The activity moved but not exactly to the place specified. This could be due to predecessor operation constraints or some other factor.
 Red: The activity failed to move at all.

Move Manager

Activities can be added to the Move Manager. This is better used when moving a group of activities that must be moved together.

- 1. Select the activities to add to the Move Manager
- 2. Left-click "Add to Move Manager"

A popup will be displayed with the orders added to the Move Manager.

lions		Plaaka	Line Advanced Sel	laction					
	1104074	DIOCKS	Use Advanced Se	lection					
e To: 1/	/1/2009 ÷	 6:00 AM 	÷ Plant Job Si	hop 🔻	Department Pai	nting	 Reso 	urce Paint Booth	
nt Booth is	is capable to run the a	activities							
Fid			Resourceivame 2						
P JO	op Shop P	ainting	Paint Booth						
J	JobName ∑ ∑ ·	- MoName ΣΥ	 OpName Σ ∀ 	ActivityId Σ ∀ -	Product ∑ ∀ -	Customer ∑ ∀ -	Priority ∑ ∀ •	NeedDate ∑ ∀ -	SlackDays ∑ ∀
1	PT00009	MO010	Op010	-2147483268			5	1/3/2009 12:00 A	1.57
2	PT00010	MO010	Op010	-2147483265			5	1/4/2009 12:00 A	1.35
3	PT00011	MO010	Op010	-2147483262			5	1/5/2009 12:00 A	1.19

- 3. Specify what day and time to move the block of activities
- 4. Specify the Plant, Department and Resource to move the block of activities to

Some Resources may appear Red; this means that the resource is not eligible to handle the entire block of activities. It may be that it's not eligible for *any* of the activities, or simply that there exists an activity that it is ineligible for.

						Mov	eManager						_ □	×	
Options	M	ove All B	locks	Use Advan	ced Selec	tion									
Move To:	1/1/2009		6:00 AM	÷ Plant	Job Shop	-	Department	Mac	hining	-	Resource	ce CNC 1		-	
Some bloc	ks cannot be m	oved to: (CNC 1 Capability												
			epartment 2 · ·	Nesourceman	ne z i	•									1
⊡1 ▶	Job Shop	Pa	inting	Paint Booth											
	JobName	ΣΫτ	MoName ∑ ▽	- OpName	ΣΫτ	ctivityId Σ Υ •	Product	- Y	Customer ∑ ⊽ -	Priority	ΣΥ	NeedDate $\Sigma \heartsuit \bullet$	SlackDays	ΣΥ• 5	
1	PT00009		MO010	Op010	-2	147483268				5	1	/3/2009 12:00 A	1.57	1/	
2	PT00010		MO010	Op010	-2	147483265				5	1	/4/2009 12:00 A	1.35	1/	
3	PT00011		MO010	Op010	-2	147483262				5	1	/5/2009 12:00 A	1.19	1/	I
•) F	I
	I 🔑 =	i di Ce	• 🔚 🛛 🍐 🖣	🛐 PDF XM	L XPS	Expand Colla	pse Re-ap	oly Filt	ters Clear Filters	Hide Se	elected R	ows Hide Non-	-Selected Row	s "∓	

The activities themselves will appear with the following colors:

- Green: The activity will move correctly and exactly to the place desired
- Orange: The activity will move but not exactly to the place specified. This could be due to predecessor operation constraints or some other factor.
- Red: The activity will fail to move at all.

Inventory Plot

Other information is also readily available from the Gantt, such as the products and materials that are relevant to the selected work order. This can be seen through using the Inventory Plot, of which there are two ways to access:

Split Screen

1. Click the Inventory Plot button on the Quick-Access Toolbar



2. Left-Click on the work order for which you want to see the material and product information for

This will split the screen in two, typically with the Inventory Plot above the rest of the Gantt chart. This allows the plot to automatically update whenever a new work order is clicked and is very helpful when quickly examining a number of jobs for the inventory information.

Specific Job

- 1. Right-click the operation
- 2. Left-click on "Inventory Plot"

This is will create a popup that contains the exact same information as the Inventory Plot option above, but is specific to just the operation that you selected. This is useful when you are concerned with a single work order or a few work orders.

Compressing the Schedule

After all the initial schedule has been created, the last thing to be done is to compress the schedule. This function only removes the gaps between activities that may have resulted from less-than-precise dragging and dropping.

- 1. Left-Click on "Options"
- 2. On the dropdown "Compress Activities Currently Start Before", select "Beginning of the Schedule"
- 3. Left-Click "Compress, Save and Close"

As you can see, there are quite a number of ways to accomplish many of the same tasks when creating a schedule. Remember that not all ways will be used all the time; the purpose of the above section is to provide insight on how the schedule can be created using PlanetTogether's features and functions.

Updating the Schedule

Once a schedule has been created, it must be updated with new information so that schedulers can react to changes on the shop floor and, if necessary, change the schedule in order to accommodate those changes.

Much of the steps are identical to how the schedule was created to begin with, but this time in a different context.

Refreshing the Planning Data

Triggering the Refresh does more than bring in new work orders and resources (if applicable). The Refresh updates ALL planning data, including production counts for the different work orders, updated inventory information, and changes to the work orders that are flowing down through the ERP.

Functionally, using the Refresh is the same in updating the schedule as it is in creating it for the first time.

Advancing the Clock

PlanetTogether functions using *two* clocks. The APS Clock starts at the beginning of the schedule and is stationary unless triggered by a user action or by an automated task. The second clock is the PC clock which reflects the local time and advances in real time. The two clocks are used in order to accommodate situations where job progress is not being recorded and entered into the ERP in real-time.

Functionally, what does this mean for the end user? It means that there can be a gap of time where the clocks are out of sync. For example, if the local time says that it's at 12:00pm PST, but the APS clock has not been advanced, it will still say that the start of the schedule is 8:00am PST, four hours earlier.

The Advance of the Clock is dependent on the Refresh. In the above example, all jobs scheduled to be finished before 12:00pm PST should already be done. If the Refresh does not occur or if the production counts have not been entered into the ERP, advancing the clock will yield errors.

Job	1/22/2015				٩.,		cl					12			
g	Resources	Ima	MD	escripti	6 (09	12	15	0.00	1.8 2	1	00	03	0)6
teeri	Jig 2	al la	p										a isa isa		
ngir	Jig 1		D		JS00007	Custom	Widg	et							
	Operator 2	10	2												
ant	Operator 1	10			JS00007	Custom	Widg	et							
al PI	Mary	0	3												
emic	Frank	10	5												
÷	Paint Booth				PT00009	PTOO	010	PT	00011	PT00012	2 01				
	Coat (Sub)														
	Heat Treat														
	CNC 2		6 E	->						V					
	CNC 1	2			JS00006	Compo	nent 2		JS000	007 Custom	Widge	et			Contraction of the second
Ŧ	Mill 2	20	5	-	JS00007	Custom	Widg	et							
	MOIL 1	- M			PT00001	Compo	nent	Stable	End	Now					
-	<			>				F1978	0.509	t in the second s					
H	ome Gantt	Activities	Capaci	ty Plan	Inventor	rv Plan	KPI	Impact	My Si	uagestions	My V	iews	Process	Flow	
The	irsday Januar	v 22 2015 6	00 AM	So	enario 1	Live S	cenario	0 36/	36 (10	0%) Jobs L	ate	2170.3	days Lat	e	1
	1 Master So	heduler log	ged in	trainir	ng 2015.1	.20.1	admin	(Connec	tion 2)	1	/22/20	15 5:5	5:16 PM	00:00	0:00

APS Clock Time

Current Time (Now)

Because the work orders will not have been updated, orders set to be finished by 12:00pm PST will act as if nothing has been done and will push the entire schedule out four hours. The result is that those orders will appear to be late when in fact they are finished. The effect on the downstream operations will also cascade, making the entire schedule appear late when it may in fact be running according to plan.

Two helpful guidelines:

- 1. Determine when progress gets updated in the ERP
- 2. ALWAYS refresh before advancing the clock.

Once we are sure that the above has been taken into consideration,

- 1. Left-click on the Plan tab 2.
- Left-Click one of the following:

Advance the Clock to Today: this option advances the clock to the same APS clock time on the current day. If the clock was set to 8:00am and we advance the clock to today, it will be set to 8:00 am of the current day.

Advance the Clock to Now: this option will advance the clock to match the current PC clock.

Options: This allows the user to define exactly what time and what day to advance the clock to.

Once the schedule has been refreshed and advanced, the schedule as it stands is as up to date as possible. From here, changes to the schedule may need to be made depending on how the new and updated information for the plan affects the schedule.

Capacity Plan

The capacity plan is a graphical interface that can be used for short term and long range capacity planning. It allows you to view work center and resource capacity by different time periods and by different measure such as available capacity, scheduled usage, by product, etc.

It is broken down into a number of dropdowns that will help us determine how we are looking at capacity.

From left to right:

- 1st dropdown: Changes what resources to display for the capacity plan

 Resources in Gantt
 Shows only the resources currently being displayed in the Gantt
 All Resources Shows
 all of the resources across all departments and all plants.
 - Workcenters in Gantt Shows the department currently being displayed in the Gantt.
 Information is displayed at the department level.
 - All Workcenters Shows the capacity for all departments across all plants.
 - All Plants Shows the capacity at the plant level for all plants.
- 2nd dropdown: This changes how capacity is displayed.
 - Available Capacity Hrs This is the number of hours available on the resource; availability means the difference between the number of raw hours available versus the amount of work scheduled on the resource or department.
 Scheduled Usage Hrs – This is the opposite of the above and shows how many hours of work has been scheduled to the resource or department.
 - Available Capacity % -- This displays the amount of available capacity on the resource or department as a percentage.
 Scheduled Usage % -- This displays the amount of scheduled work on the resource or department as a percentage.

** Note: There are many more ways to display capacity, but the above four are by far the most commonly selected ways.

- 3rd dropdown: This determines what work order statuses are being considered as affecting capacity.
 - All Jobs This shows the capacity information if all jobs are being considered, irrespective of work order status.
 - Released Only This shows the capacity information if only released orders are being considered.

 Firm Only – This shows the capacity information if only firmed orders are being considered.

 4rth dropdown: This determines the bucket length for capacity. For example, weekly capacity versus monthly capacity comparisons. This dropdown has a number of options, but the user can actually type in the bucket length if a custom bucket length is required.



- 5th dropdown: This determines the chart type on the top portion of the screen.

Controlling the Number of Buckets

It is important to know that the number of buckets displayed in the capacity plan is tied to how much time is being displayed on the Gantt. For example, if a month was showing on the Gantt, then there would be four or five weekly buckets for each resource or department. If a week or less than that was displayed, only one week would appear on the Capacity Plan.

Inventory Plan

Beyond capacity constraints, material and inventory are also important to consider when we are updating or potentially changing the schedule. Select the **Inventory Plan** tab located at the bottom of the screen. If the tab does not appear you can open the view using the navigation ribbon: From the **Plan** tab choose the *Inventory Plan* option located in the View Results Section of the ribbon.

Ad	just	ments InventoryPI	ot Item Warehouse &	Inventory									
- De [[[erman V S V F V J	nds to Show: ales Orders orecasts ob Materials	 Show Net Inventories Transfers Out Include Forecasts in 	s Net Inventory Calcul	ations	to Show: Products chases To Stock nsfers In	Bucket Lengt	h H Week Month	Horizon to Show: — O Short-Term I Planning Horizon	Ab Be	ove Max Inventory slow Safety Stock Within Lead Time	OK	je
	Inf	oType ΣΥ•	Past + On hand Σ Ÿ ▼	8/3/2015 ΣΥ·	8/10/2015 ΣΥ·	· 8/17/2015 ΣΥ·	8/24/2015 Σ Y •	8/31/2015 Σ Y	 9/7/2015 Σ ∀ 	9/14/2015 Σ Ÿ ▼	9/21/2015 Σ ∀ •	9/28/2015 Σ ∀ ·	10/5/20
1	•	- Sales Orders	0.00	426.00	463.00	818.00	650.00	221.00	627.00	888.00	710.00	175.00	0.00
2		- Forecast	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
3		- Job Materials	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
4		- Transfer Out	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
5		+ Transfer In	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
6		+ Production	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
7		+ Purchases	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00
8		Net Inventory	0.00	-426.00	-889.00	-1,707.00	-2,357.00	-2,578.00	-3,205.00	-4.093.00	-4,803.00	-4,978.00	-4,978.00

lnventory Plan . The information shown below will display.

Home Gantt Jobs Activities Inventory Plan

The Inventory Plan displays the supply and demand information for the items you want to manage. This view is useful in determining potential material shortages so that you can take action before it becomes a problem.

Similar to the Jobs view and Impact view, you can rearrange, sort and filter on the columns of information presented in the view. Click on the + to expand the rows for the selected item. The above example shows the supply and demand information by week for component 2, including Sales Orders, Forecasts, Job Materials, Transfers, Purchases and Net Inventory.

You can choose the types of items, data and time periods by checking the applicable options on the

tabs, as shown below:

Item Types to Show

Items to Include Item Types to Show	Data to show Time to Show	Click Options Color Codes Tips
 Raw Materials Finished Goods Storage Resources 	 ✓ Intermediates ✓ Sub-Assemblies 	 Purchased Items Manufactured Items

Data to Show

Items to Include	Item Types to Show	Data to show	Time to Show	Click Options	Color Codes	Tips			
✓ Show Iten ✓ Show Net Show Safe	n Details Inventories ety Stock Targets	Demands to S Sales O Forecas	Show: rders ts [erials [✓ Include Fore ✓ Transfers 0	ecasts in Net In ut	ventory	Calculations	Supplies to Show: Job Products Purchases To Stock Transfers In	

Time to Show

Items to Include	tem Types to Show Data to show	Time to Show	Click Options Color Codes Tips
-Bucket Length -			Horizon to Show:
O Hour	💽 Week		O Short-Term
🔘 Day	O Month		Planning Horizon

Click Options

Click options allow you to use the Gantt chart to click on a scheduled activity and then view the corresponding inventory plans. This option is helpful when you want to further analyze a material shortage highlighted on the Gantt by the color purple. (If using a large screen you might find it convenient to rearrange the windows so the Gantt and Inventory Plan are visible simultaneously.)

- 1. From the inventory plan choose the **Click Options** tab. Select one of the following filter options:
 - All operation materials will display all materials required for the selected operation
 - All manufacturing order materials will display materials needed in all operations for the selected manufacturing order
 - **Operation materials that are not planned** will display materials with no planned supply for the selected operation (i.e. for material requirements being supplied by standard lead-time).
 - **Manufacturing order materials that are not planned** will display any materials with no planned supply for the selected manufacturing order
- 2. Display the Gantt and click on the activity block highlighting the material shortage
- 3. Display the Inventory Plan, the inventory information will display for the items that correspond to the operation clicked in the Gantt.

i In	ventor	y Plan														
	y	Refresh II	em List	Items to In	clude Item	Types to Show	v Data to sho	w Time to Show	Click Options	Color Codes	Tips					
	Refre or filte	Refres sh plans afte er changes	n Plans r Reschedul	Auto-Fil	ter on Gantt peration Ma	: Click of Activit aterials	ies for:		• •	☑ Expand R	ows after pop	oulating fro	m Gantt cli	ck		
				💌 🗌 Only se	arch active	column										
1								Inventory Plan	n as of Monday, S	eptember 28,	2009 6:18	PM				
		Item	7•₽	Item Description	∀ •₽	Warehouse	∀ •# Wa	rning ⊽++¤	ShortTerm Warni	ing ⊽+≠	Adjustment	∑⊽→₽	ATP Qty	Σマ・₽	OnHand Qt	Σ⊽・₽
•	1 ▶	Component	2			JS Plant	OK	C	IK		91		50.00		50.00	
		Info Type	⊽∙₽	9/28/2009	Σ⊽∗₽	10/5/2009 Σ	▼ - = 10/12.	2009∑マ+₽	10/19/2009	Σ⊽∙₽	10/26/2009	Σ7·₽	11/1/2009	Σ∇+₽	11/8/2009	Σv•₽
	-1	- Sales	Orders 0.	00		0.00	0.00	0.	.00		0.00		0.00		0.00	
	2	- Foreca	ast O.	00		0.00	0.00	0.	.00		0.00		0.00		0.00	
	3	- Job M	aterials -2	50.00		0.00	0.00	0.	.00		0.00		0.00		0.00	
	4	 Transf 	erOut 0.	00		0.00	0.00	0.	.00		0.00		0.00		0.00	
	5	+ Trans	ferln 0.	00		0.00	0.00	0.	00		0.00		0.00		0.00	
	6	+ Purch	ases 0.	00		0.00	0.00	0.	00		0.00		0.00		0.00	
	7	Net Inv	entory <mark>50</mark>).00		50.00	50.00	5	0.00		50.00		50.00		50.00	

In the above example: The operation that was clicked in the Gantt view required 1 material (Component 2). Checking the option '*Expand rows after populating from Gantt click'* automatically displayed the supply and demand information as the operation is clicked in the Gantt to save you from having to expand the row manually.

Rescheduling Jobs

You can reschedule Jobs by dragging and dropping values in the "Production" row of the Inventory Plan (shown for Manufactured Items only). In order to reschedule, you must have rescheduling permissions. To see which Jobs are producing in a given interval, double-click the Production row for that interval.

Editing Forecasts

You can also edit your Forecasts by double clicking the Forecast cells. This capability requires User permission to maintain Forecasts. Note that to see the impact on the Net Inventory row after making changes you need to click the **Refresh Plans** button or have the **Refresh Plans after reschedules** checkbox checked.

Inventory Plot

The Inventory Plot is extremely helpful for a planner to see the timing of things like Purchase Order receipts and Sales Order demands in conjunction with the work orders that require the material or supply the finished good, respectively.

While the 'Plotted Values' tab gives summary information for the inventory item as a whole, the 'Inventory Details' provides line by line supply and demand information along with the time those supplies and demands are due.

Inven	tory Plan								
8	C Refresh	Item List 🗹 Refresh Automatically	Include Forecast In Net Inv						
Iten	Filter All War	ehouses - Ignore Materials	From Gantt Activity>	✓ <lgnor< p=""></lgnor<>	e Products From Gant	Activity>	~		
	Default 🔹 🕅 Ne	ew 📅 Delete Current ا 💄 💾 Save	3 Reload						
Searc	h	▼ Search A	dvancedSearch 🗙 Clear						
						Inventory Plan as	of Friday, August 7, 20	015 2:28 PM Showing 24 of 24	rows
	Item Σ \forall	 ItemDescription Σ Υ Warehouse Σ Υ 	 InventoryId ∑ ∀ < LeadTimeDays 	Σ ∀ ▼ SafetyStock	∑ ∀ ▼ BufferStock	$\Sigma \forall \bullet BufferWarning \Sigma$		n% ΣΥ ▼ MaxInventory ΣΥ •	Planner Σ Υ •
1	Food Color	FS	0.00	0.00	0.00	OK	0.00	9,999,999,999.00	
2	Powdered Milk	FS	0.00	0.00	0.00	OK	0.00	9,999,999,999.00	
3	Protein	FS	0.00	0.00	0.00	OK	0.00	9,999,999,999.00	
4	Button	MS	0.00	0.00	0.00	OK	0.00	9,999,999,999.00	
5	Case	MS	0.00	0.00	0.00	OK	0.00	9,999,999,999.00	
4								•	
m () 💌 🖪 📩	🕆 🏢 🎛 🇱 🔍 🖨 🚟 📾 Excel	📾 PDF 📾 XML XPS 🛛 🎽 Colla	pse Expand	Hide Selected Rov	vs Hide Non-Selecte	d Rows 🗔 Un-Hid	e Rows 🕜	
							•		
Adjus	stments Inventor	yPlot Item Warehouse & Inventory							
Item:	FinishedGoodMS1	Warehouse: MS. On-Hand Qty: 0.00. ATP: -	4,978.00. URGENT: Shortage within Lead	d Time. Low Date: 8/	5/2015, Safety Stock:	0, Low Level: -21 Final C	ty: -4978, Lead-Time (d	ays): 0	
	00								
	-2,489								
	-4,978	>	>		w	S			
	lig 7	ă	lig N	-	ep 4	ę.		ep 2	d 2
top	ਰ	.7	,6 1		ज	ω 		ω e	ਰ
newn		0	C1			6		01	
_									

What-If Scenarios

Once we've checked both the capacity and inventory plans, it's important for us to be able to understand the effects of our schedule changes without potentially risking the live schedule. For this reason, What-If Scenarios can be created to test schedule changes before committing to them.

Choose the **What-If** tab on the navigation ribbon and select **New What-If Scenario**. It is easy to tell when you are working in a simulated environment as the Gantt chart is clearly marked. The same options are available in the 'what-if' scenario for manually adjusting the schedule, adding capacity, expediting jobs, moving jobs, placing job on hold, etc.

What-If scenarios provide a safe place for planners to experiment with the schedule without impacting the live schedule. You can have any number of What-If scenarios as your server has RAM to cover the increased memory cost.

Experimenting with Optimization Rules

One advantage of working in a what-if environment is the ability to experiment with different optimization rules to determine how the schedule will be impacted in order to meet certain organizational objectives such as reducing set up time or meeting profit objectives.

Rule Summary

ule Name:	Due Date							
Set the Relative Weights below from 0 (ignore) to 1,000 (important)								
Rule Summary	Synchronous	Delivery Date	Priority	Efficiency	Operation Attributes	Material Groupings	Ranges	
Tab	vognungs.	SI	ider		Weig	pht		-
Efficiency		Le	ast Setup	Hours	573			
	e	Ea	rliest Job N	Need Date	232			
Delivery Dat								

Rules are grouped into one of the seven tabs (shown above). The tabs allow you to place a relative weight on multiple factors within each category. The relative weights are summarized on the *Rule Summary Tab*. In the example above, more weight is placed on efficiency than delivery date.

Note that the weight is *relative* meaning that not only is Efficiency a greater priority than Delivery Date, it is almost 3.5x greater in priority than the delivery date.

Synchronous

This tab is where optimize rules regarding the theory of constraints can be found.

Note: The synchronous manufacturing rules are typically used during a synchronize implementation and not before.

- **Highest Throughput**: Throughput is a value that can be imported. This rule will emphasize the activities with the highest throughput values
- **Highest Throughput per Drum Hour**: Takes an average of throughput her hour required on the drum resource. The activities that have the highest throughput per hour on the drum resource will be weighted more heavily
- **Highest Buffer Penetration**: The activity suffering the greatest penetration into its nearest buffer will be weighted more heavily.
- Least Drum Hours: This will cause the activities with the shortest run times required on the

drum resource to be weighted more heavily

Delivery Date

This tab contains the optimize rules that pertain to the various due dates that are tracked in Galaxy.

- Earliest Job Need Date: Activities whose Job Need Date are earlier are weighted more heavily
- **Earliest MO Need Date:** Activities whose Manufacturing Order Need dates are earlier are weighted more heavily. The MO Need Date is usually inherited from the Job level but can also be imported separately if need be.
- **Earliest Opn Need Date:** Activities whose Operations Need Dates are earlier are weighted more heavily. The Opn need date is normally calculated relative to the start dates of successor operations, but can also be imported separately if need be.
- **Earliest JIT Start Date**: The activities whose JIT start dates are earlier are weighted more heavily. JIT is calculated as the latest an operation can be scheduled and still be made on time.
- **Highest Late Penalty Cost:** The highest late penalty cost is a value that can be imported at the Job level and signifies the financial penalty incurred by a Job going late.
- **Group by Customer:** At the Job level, this option will increase the chance of orders for the same customer being scheduled together.
- **Critical Ratio:** A comparison between the work content left (hours needed to finish an activity) and the number of days remaining before the activity goes late. Activities with higher critical ratios will be scheduled first.

Priority

The priority tab contains the rules that can use different measures of priority to optimize the schedule.

- **Lowest Priority Nbr:** The priority number is a value that can be imported at the Job level. Lower priority numbers represent higher priority Jobs.
- **Hot:** The Hot flag is a value at the Job level and will be weighted more heavily if this option is selected.
- **Firm:** Firm orders are weighted more heavily as compared to planned orders or estimated orders.
- Highest Profit: The profit value is calculated using the Job revenue versus the operating expenses for this activity. The activities with the highest profit are weighted more heavily during optimization.

- **Highest Revenue:** Revenue is a value that can be imported at the Job level. Jobs with higher revenues are weighted more heavily during optimization.
- **MO In-Process:** Activities belonging to Manufacturing Orders that have already started are weighted more heavily during optimization.
- Fewest Eligible Resources: Activities that have the fewest number of eligible resources will be weighted more heavily during the optimization as these represent potential bottleneck operations.

Efficiency

This tab contains optimize rules that are aimed at making the scheduling process more efficient.

- **Least Setup Hours:** This rule will attempt to create a schedule which will minimize setup hours depending on the various ways that setup time is calculated.
- **Group by Setup Code:** If operations have a setup code, optimize will attempt to group together activities where the setup code is the same.
- **Least Run Hours:** This will attempt to maximize throughput on the resource by scheduling the shorter activities first.
- **Most Days in Queue**: This will give higher priority to the operations that have been in the system for longer. This is useful in the case where orders continually get pushed out by other activities that are deemed more important. After enough time passes, these Jobs will be given higher and higher priority in the optimization process.
- Nearest Setup Nbr: If an operation has a setup number associated with it, the optimizer will try to schedule an operation behind it with the closest setup number, whether it is higher or lower than its predecessor. This is true even when there are other orders with the same setup number.
- **Nearest Higher Setup Nbr:** Similar to above, this will attempt to sequence orders by increasing setup numbers
- **Nearest Lower Setup Nbr:** Similar to above, this will attempt to sequence orders by decreasing dsetup numbers.
- **Nearest Saw-tooth Setup Nbr:** Unlike the above, it will attempt to schedule in a higher-lowerhigher fashion during optimize based again on the setup numbers.
- **Group by MO Product Name:** This optimization rule will attempt to sequence orders together that share the same product name at the Manufacturing Order level.

- **Group by MO Product Description:** This optimization rule will attempt to sequence orders together that share the same product description at the Manufacturing Order Level.

Operation Attributes

Operation Attributes are where the implementation of Galaxy can be more specific to individual manufacturers. Attributes can be any characteristic of the products being produced that can affect scheduling. For example:

- Color
- Height
- Width
- Type of Material

Unlike the built-in rules that are common to every installation of Galaxy, the weight value in the Operation Attributes is typed rather than represented as a slider bar. The weighting, however, functions in precisely the same fashion.

L.					Optir	nize R	ule				- 🗆	×
R.	2	Clear Weigh	ts _∓									
I	Rule Name: Product											
	Set	the Relative	Weight	s below	from 0 (ignore) to	1,000 (im	iportant)					
	Ru	le Summary	Sync	hronous	Delivery Date	Priority	Efficiency	Оре	ration Attributes	Material	Grout 4	
	Attr	ribute Name	ΣΥΨ	Op	timizer Type	ΣΥ•	Weight 2	Ϋ.	Minimum $\Sigma $ \forall +	Maximur	nΣΥ	-
		Length		SameAtt	tributeCode		50		0.00	1000000	.00	
		Width		SameAtt	tributeCode	ibuteCode		400 0.00		100000.00		
	Þ	Color		SameAtt	tributeCode		1000		0.00	1000000	.00	
	*											
	_											_
		Apply						[Save and Clos	e	Cance	ł

Attribute Name: This is a dropdown menu that allows you to select Attribute Names. You can also type in the Attribute Name manually if so desired.

Optimizer Type: There are several different options in this dropdown menu:

- **Same Attribute** Code: Groups and prioritize Operations that have the same attribute code (i.e. color).

- **Same Attribute Number**: Groups and prioritizes Operations based on having the same Attribute Number (i.e. weight/width)
- **Nearest Attribute Number**: This option will group together Operations with attribute numbers nearest to this attribute number.
- **Nearest Lower Attribute Number**: Prioritizes and Groups together Operations by scheduling the operation with the closest Attribute Number that is lower.
- Nearest Highest Attribute Number: The reverse of the above case. Operations closer to the Highest Attribute Number would be prioritized over Jobs requiring a smaller Attribute Number.
- **Sawtooth Attribute Number**: Used when a resource is constantly changing its Attribute Number. Unlike the previous two options, this is dependent also on direction.
 - For example, Op1 handles a width of 3, Op2 a width of 4, and there are two more operations, one with a width of 5 and another with a width of 3, APS will schedule the Operation with the width of 5 first in order to be consistent with the increasing direction.
- **Lowest Attribute Number**: This tells the Optimizer to prioritize operations based on the Lowest Attribute Number.
- **Highest Attribute Number**: This tells the Optimizer to prioritize operations based solely on the Highest Attribute Number.

Ranges

When using multiple types of data in one Optimize rule (such as *dates* in the case of **Earliest Job Need Date** combined with *hours* in the case of **Least Setup Hours**) it can be easier to comprehend their relative weights if you "normalize" their ranges. By doing so, you can more readily see what a slider value on one slider would correspond to on the other slider(s). For example, with the Range values below if you set the Setup Hours slider and the Job Need Date Days slider both to 20% then you would be setting one hour of setup time (20% of 5) as equivalent to 18 days of slack time (20% of 90).

Rule Summary	Delivery Date	Priority	Efficiency	Operation Attributes	Material Groupings	Ranges	
							^
These ranges multiple facto ranges they v	s can be used to rs. Set the min a vill still function.	set factors nd max to	s on a consist equal values	ant scale for more predic to ignore the ranges. If	ctable results when usir values are outside of th	ng he	
Attribute				Minimum	Maximum		
Setup Numbe	er			0.00	0.00		
Setup Hours					5.00)	
Job Need Da	ite Days				90.00)	
M.O. Need D	ate Davs				0.00		

Adjusting the Relative Values

Use the slider bar to weigh each factor on which you want the optimization engine to place a greater importance. The further you slide the bar to the right, the greater the importance. In the example below, Least Setup Hours is set with a moderately high priority

Changing the Rules

The system has been preconfigured with a default rule that applies to all resources. During implementation additional rules can be set up and applied to specific resources. Each resource can have a normal resource rule and an experimental rule. During optimization you can specify which rule you want to apply. There are several ways you can experiment with optimization rules.

- 1. Change the optimization rule from the Gantt
- 2. Apply a specific rule using the optimize options

To Change Optimization Rules from the Gantt



- 1. Right-click on the resource in the Gantt view, and select *Optimize Rule*.
- The optimize rule window (pictured above) will display showing the normal rule for the Resource. You can make your changes here. (Note that multiple Resources may be sharing the same Rule.)
- 3. In order to apply the rule to the schedule, you must
 - a. Optimize the schedule. As long as you are working in the 'what-if' scenario, the live schedule will not be affected.

To Apply a Specific Rule Using the Optimize Options

🚯 Optimi	ize the Schedule		? ×
- Settings to Use			
○ Use System / CoPilot <u>S</u> cenario Sett	ings 💿 Use <u>M</u> y C	Own Settings	
Scope Rules Express MRP			
Release Rule to use			
Job Release Dates	*		
Optimize Rule(s) to use	V		
Use one Rule for all Resources	-		
Use Normal Resource Rules Use Experimental Resource Rules			
AutoJoin Manufacturing Orders			
8	Save and Optimize	Save and Close	Cancel

- From the Plan Tab on the navigation ribbon, select ^{Options} located in the optimize section of the ribbon. The dialogue box pictured on the left will display.
- 2. From the **Rules Tab**, select the rule you want to apply to the optimization.
 - Use one rule for all resources (specify rule)
 - Normal resource rule
 - Experimental resource rule
- 3. Optimize the schedule.

Setup Times

Setup time is frequently cited as a major scheduling consideration when creating a schedule. Setup time can be fixed or sequence-dependent or even somewhere in between. There may be a single factor that determines setup or there might be a dozen different factors that determine setup time. Setup can be consecutive or parallel.

This section will cover the basic concepts of setup time and how they relate to PlanetTogether. For most initial projects, setup is typically left in a basic state until ERP data can be refined to support more sophisticated methods of handling setup time.

Factors of Setup

Setup can be triggered by the change of what's called a setup number or a setup code. A setup number may pertain to some quantifiable characteristic of the resource which determines its setup time. For example, the size of a saw blade may be a modeled as a setup number.

A setup code is similar, but is used for a qualitative factor that determines setup time. This would be used in the case of a color change, for example, from white paint to black paint.

Setup codes and setup numbers are limited in that they only take into consideration a single factor that determines setup. This isn't a workable solution for the times where multiple factors are being considered in setup, for example: color, size, width, height, and mold type. If all five factors can potentially contribute to setup time, **attribute** codes and numbers would be appropriate.

An attribute is defined as any qualitative or quantitative characteristic of the product being made for that operation. Like setup numbers and codes, attribute codes and numbers exist to support quantitative and qualitative characteristics.

Types of Setup

The two first two major categories of setup are whether setup is static or sequence-dependent.

Static Setup: A static setup would be defined as a setup interval that is always a fixed amount of time. For example, changing a mold on a particular machine might be set as a fixed setup if, for example, it always takes three hours to change, regardless of the size or type of mold.

Sequence-Dependent: A sequence-dependent setup is a setup time that depends on the setup of the previous operation running on the resource. For example, a painting resource may have shorter setup times if the machine has to changing from white to black than changing from black to white.

Consecutive vs Parallel Setup

Within static and sequence-dependent setup is another category determining whether a setup is done consecutively or in parallel. This comes into play when there is more than a single factor influencing setup. As such, this is used in conjunction with attributes.

Consecutive Setup: Consecutive setup means that each factor must be setup in sequence. The corresponding setup times for each factor are therefore cumulative. See the example below:

Attribute Name	Attribute Code	Setup Time
Color	Blue	30
Size	Large	15

In the above example, a consecutive setup time would reflect the case where either the color or size must be setup first, and then the other. In this case, the total setup time would be 45 minutes (30 minutes from color and 15 from size).

Parallel Setup: A parallel setup means that both factors influencing setup are being setup at the same time. Therefore, the longest setup factor will be used as the total setup time. In the above example, a parallel setup would mean that because changing the color for the next run takes the longest, the total setup time would be 30 minutes (as opposed to 45 in a consecutive setup).

Setup Tables

Setup tables are used by PlanetTogether to determine the setup time associated with a specific operation. For example a paint booth might require different set up times depending upon the paint color changeover. The schedule can be optimized to minimize the set up time by grouping together similar operations that require less setup between them.

Three different types of tables are available:

- Setup Code Table if these tables are used, the scheduling engine will match the setup code values (e.g. color) of each operation to the values in this table to calculate the operation setup time. Note: the resource property must be set to "UseSetupCodeTable".
- 2. Attribute Code Table Attribute code tables provide more control and additional options. The information in the "Attributes" column of the operation header is compared to the values in this table to decide how much setup time is required.
- 3. Attribute number range table Provides a way to specify setup times based on a range of values (e.g oven temperatures).

Note: When using Attribute Code Tables and Attribute Number Range Tables, the resource property must specify when to include the setup. Refer to Lesson 5 - Advanced Topics for resource properties.

Create a New Setup Table

ø		-	×		
шÇ	∔℃X⊗				
		Showing	0 of 0 rows		
	Name $\Sigma \ \forall \ \bullet$	Description $\Sigma $ $\forall $ \bullet	Туре Σ∀▼		
1 🕨	Paint Changeove		SetupCode		
2	Temperature		AttributeCode		

To create a setup table:

- 1. Click Setup Tables . The screen (shown above) is displayed.
- 2. Click on the icon to create a new table
- 3. The setup dialog will display
- 4. Enter a Table Name and Description
- 5. Select the Table Type from the drop down selection box
- 6. The table values will depend upon the table type (see samples below)

Attribute Codes

Setup	Table Dialog					
able Nan	ne	Table Descri	ption	Table Type		
Paint Cha	ingeovers			Attribute Code Table		8
able Valu	ues Resources u	using this table				
			Attribute Code 1	able Values		
	Attribute Name	Y				
► Co	lor					
	PreviousOpAttribu	teCode 🛛 🏹	NextOpAttributeCode 🛛 🗸	SetupMinutes 🏹	SetupCost 🏹	
	Black		White	240	0	
	Violet		Black	30	0	
	Violet		Yellow	30	0	
	Yellow		Violet	120	0	
*						
	Attribute Name	Y				
*						

Create Attribute Table

To create an attribute table:

- 1. Specify a table name and select Attribute Code Table as the Table Type
- 2. Enter an attribute name
- 3. Click on the + to expand the rows
- 4. Enter the attribute codes for the previous and next operation and the corresponding setup hours and setup cost (optional)

Assign to Resource

- 1. Click on the tab Resources using this Table
- 2. Check the appropriate resources (shown below)
- 3. Save and Close the Setup Table Dialog

	Setup Table	Dialog							
T	able Name Paint Changeover:	Table De	scription	Table Typ Attribute C	e Code Table		~		
Г	able Values R	esources using this ta	ble						
	🗹 Select All Deselect All 🖕								
-	Resources								
	Selected 🛛 🗸 🗸	Plant 🖓 🕶	Department 🛛 🕶	Resource 🛛 🗸	Description 🛛 🕶	Active 🗸 🗸	WorkCenter 🛛 🯹		
		Job Shop	Machining	CNC 2		Image: A start of the start	CNC		
		Job Shop	Machining	Jig 1		Image: A start of the start	Jigs		
		Job Shop	Machining	Jig 2		Image: A start of the start	Jigs		
		Job Shop	Machining	Mill 1			Mill		
		Job Shop	Machining	Mill 2			Mill		
		Job Shop	Machining	Operator 1		Image: A start of the start	Operators		
		Job Shop	Machining	Operator 2		Image: A start of the start	Operators		
►	Image: A start of the start	Jøb Shop	Painting	Paint Booth			Paint		
		Job Shop	Subcontract	Coat (Sub)			Coat		
		Job Shop	Subcontract	Heat Treat			HeatTreat		
		Job Shop	Test and Ship	Frank			Test		
		Job Shop	Test and Ship	Mary			Test		
		Repetitive Mfg	Assembly	Line 1			Assembly		
		Repetitive Mfg	Assembly	Line 2			Assembly		
		Repetitive Mfg	Assembly	Line 3			Assembly		
		Repetitive Mfg	Assembly	Line 4			Assembly		
		Repetitive Mfg	Kitting	Kitting		Image: A start of the start	Kitting		
		Repetitive Mfg	Prep	Prep 1			Prep		
		Repetitive Mfg	Prep	Prep 2			Prep 💌		
	(Table Values)	can be drag-and-drop	ped from Excel.)		١	Save and Clo	se Cancel		

Example:

In the above example the Color attribute is assigned to the Paint Booth Resource.

Attributes and Ranges

🔡 Set	up Table Dialog					
Table	Name	Table	Description		Table Type	
Temp	erature	Temp	erature Changeover		Attribute Number Range	~
Table	Values Resources (ising this	s table			
			Attribu	ute N	lumber Range Table Values	
- 10	Attribute Name	V	Description	V	Eligibility Constraint 🗸	
9 1	Iemp					
	From Range Start	V	From Range End	Y		
Ð	1000		1249	_		
€	1250		1499	_		
	1500		1/49	_		
U.	1750		2000	_		
	*					
_	Attribute Name	V	Description	V	Eligibility Constraint 🔽	

(Т	able Values can be dra	g-and-di	ropped from Excel.)		Save and Close	<u>C</u> ancel

Example:

Setup Times: Operations with a "Temp" Attribute with a Number value of 1000 to 1249 will have a setup time based on the rows that can be shown below that attribute range by clicking the '+' expander.

Eligibility: Due to the "Eligibility Constraint" being checked in the setup above, the system will only allow Operations with a "Temp" Attribute to schedule on the Resources linked to this Table if the Operation's Setup Number is in one of the Ranges shown. Ovens will be able to process operations that fit into the valid ranges only.

Making Scheduling Changes

Making scheduling changes is much the same as creating the schedule for the first time. Drag-and-drop and the EasyMove grid are both as valid to use when changing the schedule as when creating one. Additionally, there are a few things that we may want to do when updating the schedule which perhaps were not necessary when we were creating the schedule.

Expediting Orders and Putting Orders on Hold

Once we examine the schedule, it may make sense to expedite certain orders while placing others on hold. Expediting an order is a quick way to move an order and all of its supplying orders earlier in the schedule. Placing an order on hold is a quick way to ensure that an operation doesn't start setting up until the hold criteria has been cleared.

Expediting Orders:

- 1. Right-click on the Operation
- 2. Select at what level you want to expedite the order
- 3. Determine when you want to expedite it
 - a. ASAP This will move it to the front of the schedule
 - b. End of the Frozen Span This will move the job to the very end of the frozen span.
 - c. To a specific date and time This allows the user to choose a specific date time to expedite the order.



Holding Orders: You may place a single operation or the entire job on hold.

- 1. Right-click and select Hold.
- 2. Specify the "hold until date" and reason for placing the job on hold.

The operations will be pushed out after that date. The operations will show up in the status segment of the color block as yellow in the Gantt. Once that day is reached, the order will come off as hold unless it is un-held by a user.



Splitting

Another common way of changing the schedule is split long runs into smaller runs. Splitting the activity allows for product variation for long runs, or the division of larger, bulk orders.

To split the activity right-click on the activity to display the options for splitting the operation, then choose how you would like to split the operation.

- You can split based on percent, units, activities, time or the number of available resources.
- Select *Split* and your operation will now appear as 2 or more activities in the Gantt.
- To un-split, go back to the splitting dialog and select Un-split

	Operation	Splitting		
This Operation is not split.		Auto	mate splitting with cus	tom logic
Split Split off a % of the n Split into this numbe 2 Split among the elig Split among the elig Split off quantities in	emaining finish qty er of Activities are less <u>1 hour</u> ible Resources: <u>1</u>	Background Job: M.O.: Operation Activity: <u>Re</u> Operation:	JS00007 MO010 Manual Assembly -2147483274 maining Finish Qty 150	<u>Remaining Run</u> 10 hours
Split into whole number quantities	Qty -	Expedite Ope	eration After Split	
Note: Only Cycle time is s	plit, not Setup or Post Processing time.	U	in-Split 🗭 Spl	it Cancel

Impact Analysis

We've perhaps made changes to the schedule. How do we determine if the changes are beneficial? When there are many orders and operations on the Gantt, it's impossible to visually determine if the change was quantifiably "good." The impact view provides a quick way to see which jobs are impacted by scheduling changes and can give us insight into the validity of the changes made.

	Impact	of Last Change		_ 🗆 🗙
Detailed Impact	Key Performance Indicators (KPI)			
Find Job in Ga	antt Open Job Help _ Early-3	ar ∑⊽ - Priority ∑	V - Hot V - Ear	linessChanneDave
1 PT00009		5	0.20)
2 PT00010		5	0.20)
3 PT00011		5	0.20)
<				>
"Show Impact" U	ser settings specify when this warning	is displayed. Unde	Last Change	Close

The tabs underneath the orange bar organize the jobs by how they are impacted

- Late the orders have moved into a late status
- Later -- the orders were already late but is now even later
- On Time the orders were slow or late and is now on time
- Earlier the orders were already early, but now is even earlier
- Less early the orders were early, but is now less early

The columns can be re-arranged, sorted, and filtered just as you were able to do with the job view.

The caveat to the Impact Analysis is that it provides the changes to the schedule *per every change*. This means that after 20 consecutive changes in the Gantt, the Impact Tab will only show the changes to the schedule *as created by the 19th change*. In order to get an idea of the net change after a number of changes, refer to the next lesson under the **KPI** section.

KPI

Key Performance Indicators can be helpful in determining the impact of scheduling changes not only on the schedule, but on business objectives and goals. Its purpose is to help schedulers make decisions that are not only good on paper, but good for the business as a whole. More will be discussed in later modules when KPI's are better supported by highly accurate data. For our purposes, the KPI allows us to accomplish impact analysis over a period of time, which the Impact tab cannot do.



Whereas the Impact Analysis tab only shows you the impact of the very last change, the KPI tab can show you the impact of changes made after a certain point.



1. Left-Click on any plotted point

2. Select "Show Impact of changes made after this point"

This will open up the Impact Analysis tab with the net changes from the point selected. **Undo & Redo**

If the impact has produced undesirable results you can *undo* the scheduling changes by clicking on the undo icon in the upper left corner of the screen. You can undo and redo back to a specific scheduling operation.

Running Reports

Using the navigation ribbon, select the *Reports* tab to view and/or print the following standard reports:

- Changeover Schedule
- Production Schedule
- Jobs Running Slower Than Standard
- Late Job Report
- Material Pick List for Today

Right-Click on a specific job to view and print the following reports:

- Job Status
- Where Used
- Job Traveler

Right-Click on a specific resource to view and print the schedule for that resource.

From the Gantt, there are several other reports that can be accessed, listed below:

Department Schedule: Similar to the Resource Schedule Report, this option shows the schedule for an entire Department.

Plant Schedule: Shows the schedule for the current plant in Gantt Screen.

All Plants Schedule: Shows the schedule for all plants, resources and departments

Material Requirements: Shows all material requirements and relevant information (Qty, Scheduled Use, etc) across all plants.

Inventories: Shows inventory information from Plants, Warehouses, Items, Purchase to Stock and Adjustment information.

Performance: Displays a report of the performance of all resources across all plants. A performance of 100% means that, on average, activities took 100% of the expected time to complete. Lower values are better.

Resource Gantt: Takes a screenshot of the resources in the Plant being displayed in the Gantt View which can be emailed or printed for a graphical report.

Job Watch Gantt: Takes a screenshot of Jobs in the Job-Watch Gantt which can be emailed or printed for a graphical report. *Requires Jobs being "watched."

Publishing the Schedule

In order for the production orders (work orders) to be updated with the actual schedule dates, the schedule must be published. This should be done <u>after</u> all manual changes have been made to the schedule and you are ready to issue the schedule to the shop floor.

To publish the schedule, select the database icon from the Quick Access Toolbar, or navigate to the *Publish* tab on the navigation ribbon and select *Publish* to *SQL* Database.